- Cr
Parchment

Paper Clity

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION

August 2, 2021 — Virtual
7P.M.

Parchment City Commission
Mayor Robert D. Britigan III

Vice-Mayor Thomas Jordan Commissioner Holly Evans

Commissioner Richard Bagley Commissioner Robin Madaras

Commissioner Doug Fooy Commissioner Michael Conner
Officers

City Manager Nancy R. Stoddard
City Attorney Robert Soltis
City Treasurer/Clerk Shannon Stutz

1. Call to Order
2. Roll Call

3. Approval of Minutes
From the City Commission Meeting of July 19, 2021
From the Special City Commission Meeting of July 30, 2021

4. Additions/Changes to the Agenda - Approval

5. Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
If you wish to comment regarding items ON the agenda, please follow the format below:

o State your name and address for the records
o You are allowed up to 5 minutes for your comments
e Please let us know if you require special accommodations by notifying the Clerk



o Reminder: You will be making a statement, without discussion from the
Commission. You are always welcome to make an appointment with the City
Manager to further discuss your comments.

6. Consent Agenda
Items on the consent agenda will be dealt with one vote by the City Commission
unless a Commissioner requests an item be dealt with individually.

Motion to RECEIVE OR APPROVE as indicated:
i.  Warrant No. 1443 — action
ii. Kindleberger Park Reservation, Pavilion 1, Soria — action
iii. Kindleberger Park Reservation, Pavilions 2 & 3 — Volunteer Recognition Event
for Lending Hands of MI — action
iv. Kindleberger Park Reservation, Stage, Brown Wedding - action
v. Preliminary Year End Financials — receive

7. Unfinished Business

8. New Business
A. Twisters — Permission to Use City Property for a Car Show - action
B. 6% Amendment to the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement Establishing PMN to
Authorize Galesburg for Membership — action
C. USDA Requirement for a State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO Review) -
action

D. Food Truck Ordinance, Second Reading — receive
E. Food Truck Ordinance Approval — action

1

9. Citizen Comments — Items ON or OFF the Agenda
Persons wishing to comment on items that are on/off the agenda are instructed to
please follow the same format as Citizen Comments for items on the agenda.

10. Mayor and Commissioner Comments

11. City Manager Comments

12. Adjournment



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD ON
MONDAY JULY 19, 2021.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order via Zoom (online due to Coronavirus shutdown) at 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan (at 5200 E Cork St.), Vice Mayor Jordan (at 904 Parchmount), Commissioners Bagley (at
1606 East G Ave), Conner (at 1150 Parchmount), and Madaras (at §15 Parchmount), City Manager
Stoddard, Treasurer/Clerk Stutz, Attorney Soltis.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Bagley to excuse the absence of Commissioner Evans. Roll call

vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

Minutes
Moved by Commissioner Conner, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the minutes of the June 21, 2021 Regular
Meeting. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

Additions or changes to the agenda.
None. Moved by Commissioner Madaras, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the agenda as written, Roll call vote
was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda

None.
Consent Agenda
Al Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Conner to receive the consent agenda items. Roll call
vote was as follows:
Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: Evans, Fooy.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

Unfinished Business
None.

New Business

A, Food Truck Ordinance, First Reading — approve. City Manager Stoddard noted that Attorney Soltis was asked to
look at neighboring communities and their related ordinances. She said she spoke with Chester Emmons (former
commissioner who has a food truck) and he said that the county license requires an inspection, that proof of insurance is not
part of the licensing, and that he felt $40 was an acceptable fee. Attorney Soltis said he took what he thought was the “best
of” those he saw. He mentioned that the following are all addressed in the ordinance: licensing, the use of gas, cleanliness.
Discussion took place regarding penalties, parking locations, noise, and whether ten was enough licenses for a year. Moved



Minutes of the July 19, 2021 City of Parchment Commission Page 2 of 4

by Commissioner Madaras, Supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the Food Truck Ordinance for First Reading. Roll
call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

B. USDA Requirements for Grant - approve. Mayor Britigan introduced Mike Schwartz, Prein & Newhof, to explain.
Mr. Schwartz began by saying that prior to bidding the USDA project, proof must be provided that all existing utilities are in
dedicated ROWs or easements. P&N has reviewed all available data related to the City’s utilities and associated easements
and concluded that there are 25 parcels for which existing easements could not be found. To verify if easements exist, an 80
year title search and last deed of record will need to be performed by a title company. The cost to perform this work is
$7,700. He added that these costs are reimbursable under the USDA program at the time of loan closing. Moved by Vice
Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to approve the expenditure of $7700 to complete the title work
necessary for the USDA Grant application. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

G Paving Projects on Church and Maple Streets and related budget amendment — approve. City Manager Stoddard
reported that two local roads have reach a critical rating for maintenance: Maple Street between Riverview Drive and Park
Avenue, and Church Street between Park Avenue and Glendale. Both streets have broken down to the base and no amount of
patching will preserve them, posing safety hazards. Three bids were asked for, only one was returned by Lakeland Asphalt.
City Manager Stoddard noted that Lakeland was the company we used for Orient Avenue repaving. She added that per
Lakeland, work could be completed by mid-August. City Treasurer Stutz explained the related budget amendment,
authorizing the transfer of $25,000 from the General Fund to the Local Street Fund, and the remaining $29,000 to come from
the Local Street Fund (increase 101-100-999 to $25,000, increase 203-451-800 increase to $54,000). Moved by
Commissioner Conner, supported by Vice Mayor Jordan to approve the expenditure of $54,000 for the paving of Maple
Street from Riverview Drive to Park Avenue, the paving of Church Street from Park Avenue to Glendale, approve the related
budget amendment, and authorize the City Manager to execute all documents related to this action. Roll call vote was as

follows:
Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: Evans, Fooy.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 5-0.

D. Resolution No 2021-6 Acceptance of American Rescue Plan Funds - approve. City Treasurer Stutz discussed the
requirements that the State of Michigan has set forth in order for municipalities to receive the ARPA funds. She mentioned
that the area Treasurers suggested a resolution would indicate formally accepting the funds. Mayor Britigan commented that
there will be plenty of time to deliberate on how to spend the funds, as well as getting community input in the process.

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-6
ACCEPTANCE OF AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN FUNDS

At a regular meeting of the City of Parchment, Kalamazoo County, Michigan on the 19th day of July 2021 at 7:00 P.M.
PRESENT: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, Madaras.

ABSENT: Evans, Fooy.

MOTION BY: Madaras

SUPPORTED BY: Conner



Minutes of the July 19, 2021 City of Parchment Commission Page 3 of 4

10.

WHEREAS, The City Commission approve accepting the direct award of $191,334.00 from the American Rescue Plan Act
Fiscal Recovery Fund, authorize the City Manager and the City Treasurer to execute all documents related to the acceptance,
and amend the budget accordingly by creating Fund 285 — Stimulus Grant Fund.

WHEREAS, On March 11, 2021, the Federal Government enacted Public Law 117-2, known as the “American Rescue Plan
Act 0of 20217 or “ARPA” to provide additional relief to address the continued impact of the Coronavirus Disease of 2019
(“COVID-19") pandemic on the economy, public health, state and local governments, individuals and businesses. On May
10, 2021, the United States Department of Treasury announced the launch of the Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal
Recovery Funds, established by ARPA, to provide $350 billion in emergency funding for eligible state, local, territorial, and
Tribal governments to recover from the COVID-19 pandemic.

WHEREAS, the City of Parchment will receive its funding through the State of Michigan, which acts as a pass-through for
smaller municipalities not entitled to receive funding directly from the federal government. The State has computed the City
of Parchment’s allotment of Fiscal Recovery Funds to be $191,334.00. This allotment will be paid to the City over two
years. The ARPA permits the City to use the Fiscal Recovery Funds to cover eligible costs incurred during the period
beginning March 3, 2021 and ending December 31, 2024. Eligible costs generally include recovery of revenue losses and
negative economic impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic, and investments in water, sewer and broadband infrastructure.
Final guidance is still being developed related to eligible costs. The City plans to have ongoing dialogue and transparency
regarding appropriation of these funds.

WHEREAS, It is recommended that, in order to maximize and expedite the use of future funding made available under
ARPA or any other state or federal economic stimulus law, the City Manager, or her designee, may file an application,
supplement or amendment for a federal, state or other grant from Stimulus Funding, and that the Treasurer can amend the
budget to create Fund 285, Stimulus Grant Fund, for all stimulus-related revenues and approved costs.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Commission of the City of Parchment accepts the American Rescue Plan
Act Funds on behalf of the City:

AYES: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Jordan, Madaras.
NAYS: None.

ABSENT: Evans, Fooy.

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED

STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF KALAMAZOO

E. Future Meetings, virtual or in-person — action. Mayor Britigan said that the City is currently able to host meetings in
person. City Manager Stoddard agreed, saying that the County has allowed virtual meetings through December 2021, with
the possible rescission of the act in their September meeting. Discussion took place regarding the prevalence of the Delta
variant of Covid-19, as well as technical issues associated with a hybrid. City Manager Stoddard noted that social distancing
is the municipality’s preference. Moved by Vice Mayor Jordan, supported by Commissioner Madaras to go back to in person
meetings beginning August 2, 2021. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Britigan, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: Bagley.

Absent: Evans, Fooy.

Abstain: Conner.

Motion Carried 3-1.

Citizen Comments
None.

Mayor and Commissioner Comments
Commissioner Bagley mentioned he will not be at the next meeting, he will be on vacation.



Minutes of the July 19, 2021 City of Parchment Commission Page 4 of 4

11.

12.

Commissioner Conner thanked Treasurer Stutz for the information on the ARP § funds.

Commissioner Madaras praised the festival, mentioning the number of people at the Park and all of the activities. She
thanked the KAC for their hard work.

Mayor Britigan congratulated the Kindleberger Arts Committee, the chairpersons and volunteers on a successful festival. He
then noted that HR 3684 was approved by the US House of Representatives and will be moving to the US Senate — which
includes $14.7 million earmarked for the US-131 southbound road project. Lastly he reminded everyone that petitions for
Parchment City Commission candidacy are due tomorrow, 7/20/21 by 4 pm.

City Manager Comments/Reports
City Manager Stoddard sent a big thank you to all who made the Kindleberger Festival happen, adding it was a joy to be out
in the open, with wonderful performances and all the activities. She invited anyone who has questions or concerns to call and

discuss them with her.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Conner and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at §:01 p.m.

Shannon Stutz, City Clerk



MINUTES OF THE EMERGENCY MEETING OF THE PARCHMENT CITY COMMISSION HELD
ON FRIDAY JULY 30, 2021.

Call to order

Mayor Britigan called the meeting to order via Zoom at 12:00pm.

Roll Call.

Present: Mayor Britigan (at 5200 E Cork St.), Vice Mayor Jordan (at 904 Parchmount), Commissioners Bagley (at
6783 N Riverview), Conner (at 1150 Parchmount), Evans (221 Espanola), Fooy (at 415 E Glenguile), and
Madaras (at 815 Parchmount), City Manager Stoddard, Deputy Clerk Smith.

Absent: None.

Citizen Comments — Items ON the Agenda
None.

New Business

A. Determine if August 2, 2021 City Commission Meeting will be Virtual or In-Person — Action. Mayor Britigan thanked
the Commission for meeting on short notice. He reminded everyone the Commission approved meeting in person at the July
19, 2021, meeting though the vote was not unanimous. Since that time, the CDC began new recommendations for indoor
meetings due to the Delta variant of COVID-19, and Mayor Britigan suggested the Commission may want to reconsider their
vote. Commissioner Bagley stated he would like to see meetings remain virtual for the time being. City Manager Stoddard
confirmed Kalamazoo County has allowed for public meetings to remain virtual through the end of 2021. Moved by
Commissioner Evans, supported by Commissioner Bagley to continue to have meetings virtually until further notice.
Commissioner Fooy questioned whether voting for virtual meetings would impact swearing in of new commissioners after
the November election. Commissioner Conner asked if the library would still be allowed to have in-person candidate forums
for the November election. Mayor Britigan stated the forums will likely not be impacted but will check with Attorney Soltis.
Mayor Britigan also stated the public may not want to come to in-person meetings due to potential COVID-19 exposure, and
remaining online will allow more attendance. Roll call vote was as follows:

Ayes: Bagley, Britigan, Conner, Evans, Fooy, Jordan, and Madaras.
Nays: None.
Absent: None.
Abstain: None.

Motion Carried 7-0.

Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Commission, it was moved by Commissioner Conner and supported by
all to adjourn the meeting at 12:09 p.m.

Kara Smith, Deputy City Clerk



Check #

MERCANTILE Checks
36498 07/20/2021
36499  07/20/2021
36500 07/20/2021
36501 07/20/2021
36502 07/20/2021
36503  07/20/2021
36504  07/20/2021
36505 07/20/2021
36506 07/20/2021
36507 07/20/2021
36508 07/20/2021
36509 07/20/2021
36510 07/20/2021
36511 07/20/2021
36512 07/20/2021
36513 07/20/2021
36514 07/20/2021
36515 07/20/2021
36516  07/20/2021
36517 07/20/2021
36518 07/20/2021
36519 07/20/2021
36520 07/20/2021
36521 07/20/2021
36522 07/20/2021
36523 07/20/2021
36524 07/20/2021

City of Parchment

Check Register Report
Warrant 1443

Vendor Name

CINTAS

CONSUMERS ENERGY
CORNERSTONE TECHNOLOGIES
EGG MEDIA LLC

ENGINEERED PROTECTION SYSTEMS
ESPER ELECTRIC, LTD.

FORD, KRIEKARD, SOLTIS & WISE
GULL LAKE JAZZ ORCHESTRA

KYLE JENNINGS

JONS TO GO

KRISTINA JORDAN

KALAMAZOO AREA BUILDING AUTHOR
KALAMAZOO CITY TREASURER
KALAMAZOO COUNTY TREASURER
KALAMAZOO OIL CO.

LOY NORRIX FORENSICS

MARANA GROUP

MLIVE MEDIA GROUP

PREIN & NEWHOF

PURITY CYLINDER GASES, INC.
REPUBLIC SERVICES #249

SBAM PLAN

SEVERANCE ELECTRIC CO INC
SHOUT LLC

SIGNCRAFTERS

NANCY STODDARD

SHANNON STUTZ

Check Description

Uniform Rental 7 Towels
Citywide street lights & energy
Shipping of Toner

Stage Manager Concerts-1st Pmt
Water Treatment 8/1 to 10/31
Fix Stage Light

Gen'l & Police Matters - June
Concert - 08/08/2021

Concert 08/01/21 Balance Owed
Stand Alone Sink-Behind Stage
reimburse Bronk Bros 7/18/21
Prop Maint-Devon & Oak Grove
Water bills- Garden, Sprinkler
610 Keyes

Fuel Charges 6/15 to 6/30/21

4 Mamma Mia Costumes

Trash Notices-July 2021

Public Notices-PC & Ord 220
Well Field 7 Trtmt Plant Aband
1/4'ly Cylinder Rental

Citywide trash and DPW - July
Employee Ins-August 2021
Traffic Signal Maint-June
Concert - 07/25/2021

Festival Banners ($800 Discount)
Zoom-On Line Meeting Platform
Mileage-April, May, June 2021

Amount

245.50
3,199.03
9.50
2,100.00
181.41
325.00
1,731.25
1,600.00
500.00
1,306.79
800.00
110.00
887.19
169.11
367.31
80.00
161.04
387.33
4,571.50
47.69
8,999.79
9,962.17
120.00
1,500.00
322.00
15.89
66.08



Kindleberger Park Reservation Form

Sunken Garden/Gazeb6 ($250 non‘resident/$150 resident) (3 hour block)
$100 deposit required

Stage ($350 non- resrdent/$200 resrdent) (3 hour block) $1 OO deposrt requrred

\/ Prcmc Pavrlron 1 ($1OO non- resrdent $50 re5|dent) (4 hour block)
_____Picnic Pavilion 2 ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4.hour block)
' Picnic Pavilion 3 {$100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hoUr.blo_ok:)--"r i
_____Picnic Pavilion 4 (§100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4:hour block) -

_____Picnic Pavilion 5 ($1OO non- resrdent $50 resrdent) (4 hour block)

Name: ﬂgéo&\xé\ BV

o GG Phone 7L0q q(ﬂ ‘87
Address; .. HSH®. EreSion P'NQ :
Email: %Y\QQS\’%’N\(\,\@G\W@\\ CGW\ Alternate Phone

Date of Event: Q\fﬂéw r)oof‘\U\ Time: U4° OG&:)Q-; T
Type of event: . AU.C.\ <4 -P‘\ é)
Approximate number of attendees: I%

Will there be music as part of your event? . O
Name of DJ, musical performer sound techmman

Deooratrons rental cha:rs/tents/tab!es'? Descnbe

Name & address for deposit return: '

\::s\mm@m B f_ o \u\v\ 77“é

Signature ' - : Date .. ‘

Thrs reservafron form rs your recerpt conﬁrmmg your reserved area
Should you experience any problem during your event, please contact the
Kalamazoo Township Police Department at 269-488@9}1-;

FOR INTERNAL OFF[CE U

Application. recerved by W Wiee W L Dete 7 22 Q} ]
Payment amount received: CA ]OD & Receipt # \9;23/

Check # Cash Credit 5
APPROVAL

Signature - Date



Kmdleberger Park Reservatlon Form

_____Sunken Garden/Gazebo (3250 non- res:dent/$150 reSIdent) (3 hour block)
" $100 deposit required

__©_Stage ($350 non- re5|dent/$200 re3|dent) (3 hour block) $ 100 depos:t requ;red

Picnic Pavilion 1 ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)

_ %_.‘Picnic Pavilion 2 ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block) -

__X_ Picnie Pavilion 3 ($100 non- -resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block) = ;
_____ Picnic Pavilion 4 ($100 non-resident,:$50 resident) (4 hour block) .= _-‘i‘f
Plcnic Pavilion 5 (3100 hon- re31dent $50 reSIdent) (4 hour block)

Name: - Luc,mc/a M, Sqlwsoh’ e St ot B phone zzp?— 39‘8 /528
Address: 32o Gilendale Bouleyvazp
Email: /mstunsere lendihahds 1l - emg Alternate Phone: 919?'547' ‘/39’/

Date of Event: :SgDA-.—nbcL IP 0zl Time: lO’

Approximate number of attendees:. . . &D .2 .. .
Will there be music as part of your event? NO ; i zmmgsn® aals
Name of DJ, musical performer, sound techn|c1an /V/e s o

Decoratlons rental chairs/tents/tables? Descnbe /F‘fj: SO

Name & address for deposit return:

7 —/5‘ Z/

. Date’ +

This reservatlon form is your recerpt conflrmmg your reserved area.: 7
Should you experience any problem during your event, please contact fhe
Kalamazoo Township Police Department at 269-488-8911.

FOR: INTERNAL GFFECE USE

Application received by: 4/\4\,———-—-’ R Date | 7 ~1L ’Z—l
Payment amougt received: Receipt # QE\L’M/L? :
Check # ‘z/w Cash Credit o
APPROVAL &y

Ay 53
| ¥ SN lg,
i , s Y
Signature Date ™34 ey

N -;}f\



Kindleberger Park Reservation Form

Sunken Garden/Gazebo ($350 non-resident/$250 resident) (3 hour block)
Includes $100 refundable deposit

g Stage ($450 non-resident/$300 resident) (3 hour block) Includes $100 deposit

______Picnic Pavilion 1 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
_____Picnic Pavilion 2 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
_____ Picnic Pavilion 3 Upper ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)
____ Picnic Pavilion 4 Lower ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)

_____Picnic Pavilion 5 Lower ($100 non-resident, $50 resident) (4 hour block)

Name: N0 BXOWN . Prone SCS- 514
Address:’ [Z‘“ K?ﬁd A\f@ Am J ( ‘QW7CU QQCG)

Email: m&ﬂﬂm N 18] Alternate Phone:

Date of Event: @ 4- 20 /rl Time: 19' A0M
Type of event: ’\/\FKH\YK‘ "
Approximate number of atteﬁ'éees Qﬂo

1

Will there be music as part of your event? h(‘j{ﬂg_ %L’ﬂ\‘:ﬁ

Name of DJ, musical performer, sound technician:

Decorations, rental chairs/tents/tables? Describe: rﬁﬁ’jﬂ) CMI( S arc b

Name & address for deposit return: _ QY COFS QDO\/(O

Signature \ Date 7‘ ,/Q]
This reservation form is your receipt, confirming your reserved area. Should you

experience any problem during your event, please contact the Kalamazoo
Township Police Department at 269-488-8911.

FOR INTERMAL OFFICE USE:
Application received by: L/.S

. Date: 7’9’75;)}
Payment amount received: %Q\G ’ Receipt # [ 29%{

Check # Cash Credit X
APPROVAL '

Signature Date



siabpng [eulBuQ '3 papuswwy QLA PUE QLD ‘QLIN pabesany Buisn

000 000 000 00°L 000 000 wawdojanag Auadoid 000296
L0'v6L 000 000 [AAratY 00°00€ 00°00€ SNoBUeBISIN 000°556
95°¢he L¥'695°L 8y 1G0'C 12158y 000002 000002 Buysiiand % Buulid 000006
000 00°0 000 000 000002 000007 uoyngijuo) Buljiessepm 100088
0512 000 00'0EL 0061 00'000'} 00'000'L uopowold AuNWWo) p00’08e
FrAVRAS 000 00'609°L 00606} 00'005°} 00°005'L sang g sdiyssoqusiy 000 0€8
GL'L6 y6'88.'¢- v6 ¥6¥'e- 1L8'€50'02 0000022 00°00%'0L ‘AISS |ENJOBJILOD/JBUOISS3J0Id 000’008
09901 000 00°8Y LE'01L0'G 00'00L'Y 00°00L sayddng Bugesado 000°0F2
G0'L¢ 499 25°5¢ oLl 00002 00002 aiedipa 000'¢es
¥8'0 (A1) 990 13404 00°00€ 00°00¢ uojesuaduwio) sJaNoM 000022
89'LE 2582 ¢l'604 Z89le 00°000°} 00°000°L Ajnoag [epos p00°GLL
ELibL 00°09% 00°0v8'C 00'068'Z 0000L°2 0000L'L all] Hed - lloiked 000'€0L
ange|siBa 000001 AdaQ
sainypuadx3
02504 L9°L06'LL 95'796'22€ £5°8YL YL 00'GZL'89E'L  00'GZL'ESE'L sanuansy
02°50L 19°206'}1 9G'¥96'/2€ £5'8YL'OPY'L 00'522'89¢'L  00°G2Z'€9E'L 000°000 Adag
000 000 969 e5't 000 000 Hoys B I8AQ shisodaqd 000'969
L1°8LL 000 000 L¥'806'G 00000'5 000 se0inog Buiueuld Jayio 000'569
0Z'5¥z LL°69L- L1691~ 09'2Z.'6€ 0000291 00'00Z'9L snoaueaasiiy 000769
000 000 08'6ZE'¢) £8'8LL'GI 000 000 swife|D uo AaA00aY aauesnsu| 000'¥B9
00001 000 00°000't¥L 00°000'} ¥} 00°000'L¥1 00°000'L¥L pesylsAQ 10} Juswesinquisy 000089
1269 GZ'688'e GZ'G8R'C 25'606'C 00002 00002y sjususisaAu) uojsaisiul 000'y99
LV'69 65248 25486} £2°100'G 000022 00002'2 saul4 ajell 000299
000 000 000 00'006'2 000 000 5]assYy poxi4 Jo 8[eS 000°'5¥9
00690t 000 000 00°62€'S 00°00S 00005 paJapuay saoines Joj sebieyd 000°ZE9
9z'08 000 00°028'z¢ 00°8€8'09} 00°00%'002 00°00¥'002 Xe| seles ejels 000645
00°0 86'895L 86'895'L 86'895'L 000 000 Sjuel9) 21BIS 000075
000 000 000 19'226'S 000 000 Buipund jesepad JoW0 000'82S
96Tl 000 6G°9L9' LY L1°202°8L 00°009'81 1 00°009'8LL SUORSRYI0D) BISBM PIIOS 000 75T
000 000 000 000 000022 000042 $99 Uojies108y 000°ESH
Le'Lol 000 62'892'€ 589/} 00°009'%} 0000971 §394 UOISIABIGRD 000TSY
ye' L9l 00050'1 00°500'€ 6€'951'GL 00°00¥'6 00°00¥'6 $88 pue asusdl 000'LSY
21701 000 65°GEV'L SEBLY'SE 00°00¥'vE 00°00¥'vZ §894 UORDSYI0D %1 0008y
v9'062 000 £2°¥96 91°059'% 00°009'} 00°009°L sexe] uo Ajjeuad 000'GhY
SeGLL 000 9E'ShL 1L LP62L'0pL 0000024 00'000'¢21 Xe] aleys geis Alunwwos jeao 000'L vy
10001 000 000 6L'290'e 00°090'¢ 00090 senioe [elisnpu| - saxe | 000'S0y
00001 000 000 €4198'169 00698269 00'G98'269 snuaasy xel 0000y
000'000 3deg
sanuanay
ANN4 TYH3N3D - LOL pund
106png jo 18bpng jenuuy  j96png jenuuy
o, JEB A JUBLINY [EMOY QLN AD [enjoy LD AD [enoy LA AD papuswy AD  [eulBuQ AD LZ0Z/0E/3 O 0Z0Z/1/L ALY AD  VEOZIOE!9 OF 0202/L/L -OLA AD
LZOZ/0E/9 O) LZ0Z/MY “QL0D AD  LEOZ/OE/9 O} LE0Z/ 19 UL AD
wd 0gz) Jawyaed 10 A1
120zielL
| :abeg 1Z/0E/9 IA Aeuaid

1¥0d3d FHN1LIANIdX3/FNNIATY



s1abpng (eulbuQ B papusWWY LA PUB QLD ‘aLW pabeseny Buisn ,

¥8'¢6 000 00°98¢'65 52'896'0EE 00°005'95€ 00°005'95¢€ "A3S [ENjORAUOD/|BUOISSJ0Id 000 008
9£'eL 609 0€'0¢ 9ges 00°00L 00001 a1edipa 000°¢CL
71’06 000 0.'602'L 816912} 00°00G'€} 00'00G'¢1 saaley - sourINsU| [ENASOH DO0'6LL
991G ¥0'92 08'98 8E°60¢ 00009 00009 Aunoag [B1003 000'GLL
PrLS 0002y 00°00¥F'} 00'066'% 00°004'6 0000L'6 awy ped - ||osked 000°€0L
8allod 000°00¢ Adag
£LeR €9198'C £9°1L99'9 8€°089'02 00°00L've 00°00L'v2 saopag jeba
096z SLevl. 05296 GZ'90v'C 00°00%'6 00'00%'6 siajel soljod-AeusoRyY 000208
14417 88'LLLT £1'669'G [N Tl 00°00€'GL 00°00¢'S) Jelsusg - Aewony 000°108
seoinag [efe 000'0Lg 1deq
92's8 £6'€22'5C 86°292'28 I8°1LP91E 00004128 00004'12€ uoljesiuLpY
JARAN 000 000 €8'69.'8 00'000'22 0000022 [eideD 000'046
000 05'65¢ 05'652 [ARN72!] 000 000 Shoaue||@osiN 000956
2629 GLB8E GLBL9'Y GLLB0'S 00°005'2 000082 siojpeuo)julely 3 lleday 000'0E6
Q601 08 %49 SZROY'L 0L'E6S'Y 0000Z' 00002y saninn 000026
299% 000 oo 00'Gv6'2 00°009'9 00'00g'a spuog g aouensu| 000016
£6'79 fosze 00'522 91es2't 00°00£'2 0000478 Bujusiang g Bupuid 000006
oR'ge LG0éL Fe'008 0.'666 00002t 00002'% Bupues | 9 seymisul 000 099
20'GelL 99°/L2 G9'E6E'E 24'100'8 00002'2 00°00Z'2 suoljediunuiiod 000056
19°8L (144 0572 66'CV6 00°00¢") 00°00Z'} sanq g sdiysiaquaiy 000 068
04991 oo'ser 0o'zse'a L0°029'G) 00°00F'6 00'00¥'6 senjeg seindwod 0008
ve'vel 62°6EE 68'€08't §9'20L'L 00'002'9 00°002'9 ‘MBS [BNORJUOY/BUOISSDJ0I 000008
882 000 614 19481 000002 001000 sa||ddng soukusjuieyy B Jleday 000'GLL
y9'e6 84008 85°658'| £00ZL'Y 00°00%'t 00'00¥'y sojiddng Bugesado 000'0vL
GLeql L1491 Gy'60G'L 69°098'G 00002'€ 00°002' afiejsod 000054
000 000 0o'o 000 00°008'6 00'009'6G ljouag juswaliay YIWDL 000'v2.L
a'Le 0y'GolL 80'96% €CGLLE 000092 00'008'Z QIedIpaN 000°¢EL
6004 0028 00" 4Lk 99°06% 00004 00002 uoljsuadwo) s ayopm 000024
15°GLL LBZ0P'E 1200604 1£7086'9¢ 00°000'2E 00°000°2E uoisuad Q00814
LG 000 99'45b'L 66'189'8 0000L'Yy 00°00L'y 8jagenpaq eaurinsuy 1.00'9L.L
gkl POPELTY E65LC T TA IR 00°000'55 0 goR'es oobnRy| Sjr/edsay 0009k,
BF'LR 98404 06°8L)'2 PRPPO'G a0'0nt'LL 00'00L°LL Aunasg BI0S 000'6L.
5108 BE8G0's 19'6L0'6 v6'§28'0p 00°050'ay 060000y Bl 10d - I4EL 000'E0L
B2 7R Ov'Lopad 29'4b0's01 60000 ¥EL 00 hou've Bl na - neked nezos
udiiensiliitipy 00°00z deQ
L'86 (AR AN yavee’e 0S'0LL'vY 00'S0Y'Gh 00'005'92 anje|siba
8666 000 000 05 40E'E 00°'50€'e 000 leded 000046
anjeisiba 000001 3deg
sainypuadxy
ANN- TvY3N39 - LOL -pund
1ebpng jo 18bpng [enuuy  386png jenuuy
% JEBA JUBLNY [enoy ALl AD [ENPY QLD AD [eNdY QLA AD papuswy AD leuiBug A9 L202/0E19 0V 0Z02/1/2 ALY AD  L20Z/0E/9 O 0Z02/1/L "OLA AD
1Z0Z/0E/9 O LZ0E/ LY |QLD AD  LZ0Z/0E/ OF LZ0Z/L9 :OLW AD
wd pg:Z) Juswyased 1o A
L20z/LelL
7 abeq LZ/08/9 3A Aeupwaid

L1H0d3Y JUNLIANIIXIANNIAIY



sjabpng [euibuQ 3 papuswwy QLA PUE QLD ‘AL pabeiany Buisn ,

9/°¢ 000 00°0 6E1L 00°006° 00°006't asuadx3 sals)u| 000'G66
By vy 000 000 116282 00°009°ZL 00°009'LL |ediulid-uawaiay 19eq 000°L66
v v 6RELY 19T 6Y°21E'92 00°006'0} 00°006'04 sioeJuODIUR 3 J1eday 000'0E6
66'80} vL'269'2 65'8Z1'8 ZL'Gen'Le 00'00Z'6¢ 00'002'62 Bunubiniaans 000926
2Ls6 G9'LYE L9GLY'L 80°066'/ 00°00%'8 00°004's N 000°0z6
SZ'9y 000 000 00'9£9'2 00004'G 00°00£'S spuog '3 82ueINsu| 000°0L6
86'95 000 000 06452 00°005 00005 uolowold Qunwwo) 000088
000 000 000 000 00°00€ 00'00¢ Buiuies | g seImisu] 000098
£9'2pL 86'6L1 Z8°6LY 99'82¢'L 00°006 00°006 suojeauUNWWoY 000°058
[eleylels 9.'691 177069 191152 00°000°c 00°000'¢ [eJuaY ULOJiun 000'SHS
£9'50L 08'929'8 L0°L12'92 PY'LEE'9LL 00°000°0LL 00°000°0LL safileyQ uonae|I0D Ysiaany 000048
1950} 00'661 05°¥48 00'156 00006 00°006 'AIBS [BNjORNUCD/BUCISSBJ0.d 000008
18°8G 000 000 S0'b6Z 00°005 00°00S sayddng Alsjes 000082
16501 0Z'9E2 sl 9/°1/€'8 00°006'2 00°006"2 saddng soueusjUlRl § JIedeyY 000'GLL
76'86 6 vhy 91'8£6 Z9PSL'Y 00°00Z'y 00°00Z'y 110 ' auljoses 000 9v.
0,82 000 19G1LL 25Epl 00°005 00005 sa|ddng Bupessdo 000'0FL
LO'ELL 9R6ELE 6L'ZYE 10°958"L 00°002'} 00'00Z°1 aIBdIpBIN 000'7CL
8200 G4°29¢ BlL'6y. EEBLOT 00008's 00°008'% uopesuadwon SR 000'0EZ
Gp'1g 0o 0o'n E06E'2 00°000'6 R0000'8 $02)19Y - BoUBINSY) [eNdsoH 00062
92'79 028l LEGBL'D 22 EBLLZ 00°00g'EE D0'005'EE ualkusd O00GL.
pLoel 0n'o b Lgegl's 0ppdp'2 06o°t00'z qliohpag satlensu) LOg9L/
11°G2L FLLOLE LpgLa0) 26'526'98 b0005'ae 0000667 gouRIfgu| 8 fendsop NOe'9L.
GEaLL LGELs ELEAE | loges's {0'008'y 00008’y Aunong (B1305 600612
yE'es ZLOve's L§'Gle'l SRGLFES a0005'8L 00°009'84 By N4 - [UAR] 00070/
809]AIAG olldnd 000Dy 1dsq)
146 59' 280 26" LG gL R TAN) bpong'ozt  O0008'DEL ald
188l 060 000 §lesL'e 00°000'0% 00080'02 edes 000046
b2y 0o e gLeL BLLSYY 00ang'oL 00°005'0L SIOlERUO WEI F edey 000086
ored GO LbE LLYES VL152'T 000047 (000472 SapiIn 000'026
e'LL oo pop DOHGE'A 0000E's 00'00g's BpUDH B satemsl] 000 0LG
86'65 0006 (0642 £8'916'2 00°00E v 0o6os'y suoReEdURLLIngG 000068
000 000 009 0o o't 000 0o 8en() 7 sdysisquoly (00'0CE
0&'Ca 00 00'05kHLL 28'6Y5'29 90'006'9a 00°008'89 ‘Mag [EmARRLoD/RUoIEssj0ld 000°008
a0’ o0'e g oo 0009l ool saliddng Aajes 000082
000 00'n 60'n (4] 06'pan’ Bo'fni', sa({Hdng aouBLSIMBEA % ARday n00'6L,
{(2°91 (00 908 G699 00000'L o0-000't Q) 8 BUHOSEE) 009k,
000 000 000 000 06'600'G 00060 saiiddng Buiesado 000'0%2
alld 000°9eE daq
Z9'L6 £1Z6h 08'20L'29 11'605'8¥€ 00'00¥'08¢  00'00¥'08€ aoljod
saanjipuadx3y
annNd TvyYINT9 - 1oL pung
196png jo jebpng jenuuy  196png jenuuy
o, JE A JUBLINY lenoy a1 AD [enoy aro AD 1emoy LA AD papuswy AD [euiBluo A0 1Z202/08/9 01 0Z02/1/L :A1Y AD  LZ0Z/0E/9 ) 0Z0Z/L/L “ALA AD
1Z0Z/0E/9 O} L2027 \QLD AD  1202/0E/9 O LZ0Z/L/9 :O1WN AD
wd gggh JuawyaIed jo Ao
120zl
¢ wafeg LZ/08/9 A Aeupwijaid

140d34 JUNLIANIAX3/ANNIAIY



s196png [eulbuQ 7 papuswWY (LA PUB QLD ‘LW pabieseny Buisn

Z6'0LL- 8'958'G6- 02'651'9E 25186721 00'082'0L}-  00'G/8'96 083 18N [BJ0L PUBID
8Y'958'65- 0/'651'9¢ FASWAN ¥ A4 ‘aouejeg pun4 ui abueyn
Z6°0LL- 81'958'G6- 02'651'9¢ 75/S6°TZL 00082'0LL-  00°G/8'96 NN TYHINID 101083 18N
868 G1'v9/'/9 9g'v08'L6Z Lo LLR'ezZE'L 00'G0S'6.%'L  00°009'09%' sainypuadx3
1869 60°195°71 vZ'e0z'sl 29'886'0Z1 00°00€'ELL 00'00€'¢L) aInny g Uo)EsINBY 'skied
000k 000 00'000'y 00°000' 000000} 00°000'0L [enden 000026
4669 n0'S45' 0092811 00'yEy L 00’0008 60'000'4E sioeIuon ey B ieday 000066
96'L6 LOGLE D8'GLE} ag'vae'e 00'008'0 00'00a'y sapfiin 000 0g6
ve'eG 00 00°e 00'0ge'E fipoog'g noooy'y spuag p 8aueinsu] poo0Le
00 oo to'o 000 9600 IRl sayddng Aajes 000'0%/
PNV Ok Lo #746'a Ghyge'y a0+ oL 0ok o) gayddng soususiEw 5 18d3y 600'6LL
75'/§ GEyLy tlaea FLUERLT 000042 00004 % 10 % BUIIOSEH) 000 DL
b2'06 Oebd 060z AL 00008 00008 alevipsly D00'28.
0L 07061 Ag 0oy 156" vogoa't 06'00g"L togaauadiueg) SieNiom 000°074
6510 oa'vs) GE0E'Y [T09Y'SL 06 en0'tz a0'hon‘Es uoisUad (0061
060 000 000 0vo pEo00": fo'on0’L Sglionpag eauminsy| L00'9LL
6g LY an'aeR ANt Lys6L'9 00 aoR'l o008t oouwinal) o) EdsoH norgL.
A IR #£'G68 LEoRa'e BOg0e's 0000a'e Anoeg (#1208 00'GLL
ran: PrArds fL4€8') AR 00°000'0b odne0'et Bl LB - [l0Re DG0E0L
LEeR 008y 0608421 o0'g80'ep ot'ton b8 0'000' e Al nd = loked pog'E04
BIRjine % Uolieanay 'Sled 000'1S. 1daq
€66 ¥8'666'6Z GYT6H'9L 92'99.'¥5¢ 00°008'€9¢E 00°008'€9€ $80IM8S 2ljand
salnypuadx3
aNN4 TYYINID - LOL pung
Jebpng jo 1abpng [enuuy  1abpng [enuuy
9%, Jea A Juauny lenioy A1 AD [emoy a1 AD 1eMoY QLA AD papuswy A9 leuibizo AD LZOZ/OE/9 01 0Z0Z/L/L ‘ALY AD  LE0ZI0EI O 0Z0E/HL ‘LA AD
1Z0Z/0E/9 O} LZ02/1/7 {010 AD  LZOZ/OE/I 01 1202/1/9 :ALN AD
wd pg:z1 Jswyaed jo A
120z/121L
v abed 1Z/0€/3 3A Aeuwaid

1H0d3Y FUNLIANIdXIFNNIAIY



sjabpng [euiBluQ 13 papuslwwy QLA PUe LD 'aLW pabessay buisn ,

aDUBUBIUIBW JAIUIA 000'8.LY 1deq

op'Le L300 10'E59'v1 G8'VEE'GE 00°00L'LC 00004'L2 SBOINBS JYfRi L
E6'SYL 19°18E'E- £6'619C) ZL'E08' L) 00°002°Ch 00'002'z} siojoeAuO)UIEW B Jieday 000086
BL® 00°0 000 09012 00°00¥'2 00°00¥'C salddng aoueualulel B JiBdeY 000'GLL
000 000 000 000 00°00S 00°005 110 %8 BUIOSBS) 000'OkL
88'65 91's WSl 88'65 00°001 00°001 aiedipaly 000224
0€'29 or've 0zZ'€L £8°20€ 00°05Y 0005 uonesuadwoy SJHI0M 000022
vL'ey virsyl SR'6eb L bbb 000008 00°000'% uoisiad pO0'8LL
000 000 000 on'o 00°001 00°00 ejgponpag eoueInsU| L0091/
66°2G Loyl 0G'N9E 20°Ev0'L 00'008'} 00008t aoueInsu| sjryiendsod 0009kL
€118 £l'ee £E'G9 L0'25¢ 00°05¥ 00'05% Aunoag |eos 000°G1.
06829 09'zee 08°280'1 GLyLey 00°002'9 00'002'9 oull fin4 - floiked 000¢0.
500|085 QYjRIL 000'SLy 108
£0°06 Z95LLLL £9'001L'EL 6L219'0z 00°006'2Z 0000622 BOUBLBIUIRYY BUNNOY
PrisL 00906 00'90.'6 00°€8S L1 00°005'L 00°005'Z si0jpEAUOD RN 7 J1BdSY 000'0ES
1902 Lo'gee’l LO'eze' 25'E5S') 00°002'Z 00°00Z'E sayddng sourusue 3 Jedsy 00062
000 000 000 000 00°00€ 0000 110 ® Bulloses) 0009k
Gv'19 G Zgal 57’19 00001 00001 RIBOIpA 000'2EL
16789 96'v2 paYL LLOLE 00°05¥ 0005y uofesusduIo SJBYIOM 000'02.
£e6y 828yl ¢L6eY SLBLY'L 00°'000'E 00000'E uojsuad 000'RLZ
000 00’0 000 000 00°00} 00001 ajqlenpag aaueinsul L00'9LL
9645 Z0'pLL 56'09€ SZEV0'L 00'008'L 00°008"L soueinsy| a)leidsoH 000912
8005 N4 6949 78'€9Z 00°0Sy 00°05Y Aunosg [e100S 000'GLL
G019 760LE aaELL ey 000002 00°000'2 aw] [In4 - l02ARd 000°20.2
souRUBIUIRKY BUANCY 000'EAY 1dad
527082 00’0 000 15'81Y'62 00°005°01 DO'00S'0k uofanasues)
08'66 o0 000 G BLH0L 0a'n0G'0L be'00a"ok ieydeD 000046
0oo 00'n 000 B0'GEAT) 0p0 000 SIQBRUBTYUIEA % 4iday (000G
) HGNOPNRIGY) G0 Ly adac
sainjipuadx3
(WAL £2°95€9) £6°89Y'ey 95'¥6¢ 954 00'00€'€8)  00°00£'€9} sanuanay
L£'G6 12°95¢'9L £6'89V'EY 95°62'95L 0D'00E'E9L  00'0DEE9L 000000 adeg
000 8602} 82604} 82°60L'L 000 000 sjuaisanu| uo Jsaalul 000799
000 00009 00°009 00'009 000 000 palapusy saoiuag o} safileyd 000'ze9
0€'¥6 6Y'9V0'vL GL'6SL' LY 8. ¥86'ESH D0'00E'€9L  00°00EE9L LG 10V - sjuel9) aleis 000'9pS
000000 3daa
sanuaaay
aNNd 1334LS HOryi - ¢og pund
10bpng Jo 1ebpng jenuuy  }abpng jenuuy
9% JEaA ualng 1BMOY QLW AD lenoy a1 AD [eMdY QLA AD papuswy AD “mc_mto AD LZ0Z/0E/9 01 0Z0Z/L/L QLY AD  LE0T/OE/9 O 0202/ 1L \ALA AD
}202/06/9 O 1202/MY 31D A 1Z02/0E/3 OF L20%/L9 ‘OLIW AD
wd 11z} Juswyased jo g
Lzoz/LelL
g :abed 1210819 FA Aeuwiaid

140d3d FUNLIANIXIEFNNIATY



sjbpng [2ulBIO B papustuwy QLA PUE QLD 'ALN peBesday Buisn

19'962'01 G210y 8¥'8v8'82 ‘aoukjrg pund ui abueyn
£8°89 L9'96%'01 GLLBR'Y 84'8+8'82 00°GL6'LY 00'619'95 NN LITYLS HOMYW 10J 30815 19N
66 P01 99'650'9 89°958' LY 80°9¥'LT) 00°S8E' LTl 00'689'901 sasnpuadys
RO'GE P LR 00'Eee'RL Z0'689'5E 00'0¥L'vE DO'0FY'6) US|y
po-aot an'n 000044 i goH' L afenn'L PEEHAD BANEASIUILDY 0N (96
87 66 oo a0 ao60‘y: EYR R4S 006021 00h snAsuUlEse N00'G56
neee G2 BLE Lol 00°08 0067 aleapall 000TEs
Geoge 08'G g8 AL BELL 80'6Z VRt A 2IORGA Q0007
pLL 2966 86°v0} gogee aoes B0°00% ugisUuay 000'8LL
/e L8 E0ok 06 vi BO°EQE Noaog 00'60g agueInell| g)l/|HildEoH 60051/
RZ'G0 GE'S E0'81 0766 ao'0nk 0a°onk Aunsag [ppog oo0GH.
LLG8 95°p po'ase glapkt 0 602" gl g Iy - oABe Q00204
UOIENSIMILEY 000 & 1080
nLus 867055'S 0p Gyl 62 aauByajuie)y s
AT ATRLR'Y 00086 S lies 000°€6L
9961 000 00006 00°006 IO @ BUljoses) 000'9v.
£L0L 95’61 0oogl 00°0¢L 2Jedlpaly 000'¢es
LIS 9226 00°6¢S 00°5¢S uoesuadwog sJNIoM 000022
6E'GE £9'258 | L'BE6'L 00°00G'€ 00°00S'e uoisuad 00084
000 000 000 00002 00°002 aiqnanpa souensul LO09L.L
9v'29 98°%0S 01'66%'L 00°00%'C 00°00¥'C fouensu| a)ieNdsoH 000'9lL.
vl'cl 98'€8 ¢/e9g 00°008 00005 Anoag 1203 000'GL.
eLel yr8LeL 816G 000018 000018 suwll] ind - lloJked 000'Z0.
aoUBUBJUBY JSIUIM 000'8Ly 3daq
sainypuadxg
ANNd L133HLS HOrvYW - 202 -pund
18bpng jo 18Bpng jenuuy jabpng [enuuy
9, JBA A JUBUNY [NV QLW AD [emoy 41D AD [EMOY QLA AD papuswy A [euiBuQ AD LZ0Z/0£/9 ©) 0Z02/LIL ‘ALY AD  LZ0Z/0E/9 O 0202/1/2 “ALA AD
LZ0Z/0E/9 O) LZ0Z/My {ALD AD  LZOT/OE! OV LEDZ/LIG "ALWN AD
wd 12} Jswyared jo Ao
Leoe/LelL
q afed 120€/9 IA Areunujald

140434 FUNLIONIdXIANNIAIY



sjabipng {euiBlIQ g PapuUSWWY QLA PUB QLD ‘a1 pabessiy Buisn ,

8289 Gv'.e 6228 99'/6¢€ 00'0¢S 00025 funoag (1905 000'GLL
0802 8L sy y5ese’l Zr9.8's 00°00¢'8 00°00€'8 auilL ind - llosked 000204
aouBuBIUIBH JAIUIM 00084y 1daq
GQ'GE #6959 L1286'L L0962 0002502 00°025'02 S20/MBG DRl ]
000 000 000 000 00009 00009 sI0)0BAUOYIUIRIN B JledeY 000°0E6
85'f 000 000 0902 00°009'% 00°009'y salddng aouruajuie g JIedey 000°6LZ
000 000 000 000 00°008 00°00S IO g suljoses 000'9k2
GL'8¥ ¥0'S 01’51 05'8% 0002t 00021 2ledlpsill 00022
8¢'65 ¥8'€C sl 6€'96¢ 00°00§ 00°008 uoiesuadwos sIyIop 000022
veey (AA L0'0CY 9B vyl 00°05€'E 00°05¢'E uoisuad 000°8L4
000 000 000 000 00002 00002 a|quonpaq eouelnsu| LO0'9LL
eLEY €00L1 ¥8°2pE 89'600') 00'00€'2 00°00€C 8ouBINSU| BI/1BYIdSOH 000°91.
¥2'08 9'Le 08'v9 0¢'16¢ 00°008 00008 funoag |epos 000°GL.
VA4t 0€E'tse 06'290'L vL8LL'Y 00'068'2 00'068'. 8w In4 - [joihed 000'20L
S80juBS Il 0005y Adag
L2'9y £1'260'C pLLLY'E 26 LLT L) 00'6/2've 006212 doueuBjUIRA BUINOY
00'LE 000 000 00°058'L 000006 00°000'S siojoRAuO IUIEI 3 JIedaY 000'0E6
8685 25'S0p'L 26°G0v'L 12°188") 00°002't 00°002°€ saddng eoueusjulel 3 Jleday 000°5.L.
000 000 000 000 00'00€ 00°00€ IO ® sulose) N00'9bL
SL'6y 8¢S ¢8'Gl Pyl 0062l 00'6eL aleolpaiyl 000°¢CL
L0°6S 96'FC 88'vL LLoLE 00'92S 00°'62s uojiesusdwo)) SNOM 000'02L
8z'cy 8L'8Yl ¢L6EY GL6LY'L 00°005'¢ 00°00S'e uoisuad 000'gLL
000 000 000 000 00002 00'00¢ gjquonpa asueinsuj 100'9L.
Loy oyl GG 09¢ GZEV0'L 00009'Z 000092 8ouBINSU| BJI/ieNdSOH 000°9)L
6205 89'¢e 68°£9 ¢9'€9e 00628 00'6¢s Aunosg [e0os 000'GLL
80ZS 604 9.2k’ 82'2eL'y 00°00€'8 00'00€'e auit find - ljosked 000204
aouBUBUIBIA BUINOY 000 €9y deg
08'66 000 000 BY'6.0'01 00°005'0} 00°00G'0L ucnonJsuoy
08'66 000 000 664701 00°005'0} 00°005'0} lended 000046
uofongsuod 000'LSy deg
sanypuadx3
1096 0£°068'S 19961 2) £5°10'Y9 0000499 0000499 sanuanay
1096 0£°068'G 19951°L) £5'L¥0'19 0000499 00°00£'99 000°000 3daq
000 Er'es Er'es Er'es 000 000 SjusLsaAU| Lo Jsalsiu| 000 F99
£6°66 18'9€8'G pZ'eol' L 01'886'€9 00°00£'99 00°00£'99 LGV - SjueI9) 8lelS 000°9S
0007000 3dag
sanuansy
aNN4 133418 Y001 - €02 -pund
19bpng jo 196png [eruuy  196png [enuuy
9%, JE3 A JUBLIND [enioY AliN AD jenoy aLd AD |enioy aLA AD papuawy A9 Jeuibllg AD LZ0Z/0£/9 01 0Z02/LL ALY AD  LEOTI0E/9 01 0Z0Z/L/L QLA AD
120Z/0£/9 O} LZ0Z/LY -QLD AD  LE0Z/0E/9 O3 LE0Z/L/9 -OLW AD
wd 121 1uswyied jo Ao
eog/ielL
1 8bed VZI06/9 3A Aeuiwjald

140d3Y IHNLIANIAXIIFNNIATY



sjabpng eutbuo 3 papuswiwy gLA pue aLD '0Lin pabesany Buisn ,

1H0d3d FUNLIANIdXI/ANNIATY

£0'90L'2 £8PeE L L b ‘gaugieg pund u abuey)
y9'E £0'00L'Z EEVEE'LL- AL 00's55 76" 00'685'vE- GNN4 L3FHLE TVO0T 401 102)3 18N
] 12yl 05'LL5'82 16'962'G9 00°652'L0) 00°552'10L sainpuedxy
95°c6 99'2gl D2'g6s'9L lg'veo'sL 00'0¥E's1 00'0FE'81 uonessiupy
gL'gs 000 40°'006'91L 000009 00°00€'9} 00°'00g'9L PESLIBAQ ajensinwpYy 000096
0908 GZ'L cie AR 00°0¢ 0002 aledipalyl 000'ZZL
G9°98¢ 96'¢ 884l £e'LL 00°0¢ 0002 ugiesuadwo) sJeNIom 000024
T 25'sE 867701 89'8.¢€ 00°059 00059 uaisuad 000'gL.L
Z8'es zoop 0 bb! 89°€0y 00052 00064 saueinsy| efifeydsod 000942
82’69 §e'% £0'8l 2769 00001 00°604 Munoag [epos 000'GLL
1992 9588 89'G9¢ 8161l 00005k 00005 BullL |ind - jeided 00020/
uopessiupy 000'28y dag
61'89 ¥5ése BE'6ER'D ZZ'lal's} 00'070'92 00'920'62 S0UBUBIUIEA Jalulap
€06, 000 1Z816'E - EVERg . §0°606's 00'006'6 HES 000°E62
99'61 000 000 G6'9/1 00006 00006 10 B 8UII0seD 000'9v.
0g'/9 9%'9 LE61 cl'y8 00621 00'5¢L 8IBJIPSIN 000°CEL
¥yl 9g°0¢ 80°L6 9€°16€ 00'5¢S 00'625 uojesuadwo) siaom 00002,
62'¢S 67081 6L°C¥S £5°606°L 00085'c 00°055'¢ uaisuad 000'8LL
000 000 000 000 00°002 00°002 a|quonpag eoueInsul LO0'9LL
tC95 Z1'95L TG GLL9Y') 00°009°¢ 00°009°2 soueInsu| ajeNdsoH 000°91.2
aoURUSIUIBA JAIUIM 000°'8/ 1dag
sain)ipuadx3
ANN4 133418 Y201 - €02 -pund
196png jo 18Bpng |enuuy  1ebpng enuuy
9% 183 A Juaung [eMoY Q1N AD [emoy aLo A2 [enjoY QLA AD pepuawy AD  [euwiBug A9 LZ02/0E/9 OL020T/V/2 QLY AD  LE0Z/0E/9 O 0Z0Z/LIL *ALA AD
LZ0C/0E/9 0 LZ0Z/\Y 01D AD  LZ0Z/08/3 O LZ0Z/L/9 \OLN AD
wd |1z} juswiyded Jo Ao
LeoeiielL
g :abed 1Z/0€/9 IA Aeuiunaig



sjabipng [euiblQ '8 papuswwy LA pue aLo ‘aLi pabessay Buisn ,

15°852'02- LT1E9'0E ‘80uB|eg pun4 ul abueyn
000 15'852'0¢- 000 1T'1E9'08 000 000 TYAILSTH HIWNNS HIDUIFTTANIN Jo} 10343 18N
9¢'9% 78'896'cC 000 ¥8'G¥L L2 00°089'8S 00°02L'6% sainypusdx3
9¢'9% ¥8'896°C2 000 v8'SyL'/Z 00089'85 00°0LL'6¥ 000°000 2de@
R A VL 18Y) 000 LLI8Y'L 00'691'9 00°GE6'F fonand 0z0'6.L
IR 000 000 00°005 000525k 00'00EZL Juswuepalu3 sbelg €10'62/
£8°/2 57'8€0'E 000 6Z'085'€ 00'698'Z) 00'699'6 UOHENSIUIWPY - [BAISSS ZL0'6.L
000 000 000 0062 000 000 diysisquiap-Buisiey pund 04L0'6.4
000 000 000 000 00°00'} 00°0€0'} soueg-Buisiey pun4 800'6..
5.'89 00°00L'L 000 00°00}'1 00009’ 00°00}'t B3lY SURIP|YD-keq 1584 S00'6.L
000 00'0 000 000 00°0Lk 00'0p} sye1) B spy - ke 1834 ¥00'6.LL
25'9¢ 05'26V') 000 0526V} 00°00L'Y 00°000'€ AlereoRY - Aeq [eAlse4 £00°6..
05'L1 8£'5¥8'l 000 8£'G56'81 000002k 00°000'ZL asuadx3 ouewIOad |00'6.L.
000000 de@
sain)ipuadx3
9v'86 LZoLL'e 000 WWLLL'LS 00°099'8S 00°0.L'6% sanuaAsy
9¥'86 L0l 000 L1228 00089'85 00'0/L'6¥ 000°000 de@
000 000 000 000 00°0v0'} 00°080°} snosue|iRosiiAl 000769
000 000 000 000 001091} 00'085°L ajue( Jesielpund 200'G/9
000 000 000 00004~ 000 000198 Buisied pund 10029
00°00L 000 000 000000 00°000°0€ 00°000°L2 ‘puno4 aiowis g Buin-sjuelD) |00"06G
00008 000 000 00000'G 00000} 000 [B307T-SJUBID) (000°06S
000 000 000 000 000 000 "0U| snoaue||sosiiy 800G
58l 00°005 000 00°009'91 00°000'FL 00'000'8 sdiysiosuods ajesodio] GOO'GLY
1yest 08'126 000 05°29.'C 00°008"} 000082 aAl(Q pund diysisquisiy £00°S.y
69'¢E £ Pe9'l 000 EFyE9’l 000006 00°000'€ sa94 jlep/aoey ¢00'GLy
L0y ¥0'¥09 000 81°088'L 007089y 0000L'S SieId g suy 100Gy
000°000 deq
SanuaAay
TYAILS3 4 ¥3WWNS H3DH3G3TANIM - 062 pun4
1abpng jo 1abpng [enuuy jafipng |enuuy 1202/1E/Z1 O
9, 1B A JUBLNY [BNOY QLN AD [BMOY QLD AD [EMOY QLA AD papusliy A9 [eulbuQ AD L202/L/L ‘ALY AD  LZ0Z/08/9 OF LZ0Z/L/L \ALA AD  LZ0ZIERL
01 1Z02/L/0L 01D AD LZ0ZI06/9 O} LZ0Z/19 :OLIN AD
wd |1} JuswydIed Jo AiY
Leoe/Lell
6 :abeqd 1Z/0€/9 JA Aeuiwiaid

140d3d FHNLIANIIXIANNIATY



sjabpng |eulBug B papuswwy LA Pue 410 ‘G pabessay Buisn ,

EV'ES 159¥6'61- 88°9¥9'cZ- ‘80uejeg pun4 ul abueyn
18°Z0l EV'es LG9P6'6L- 88'9¥9'ce- 00'000°€e- 00°000°€Z- Juswdojenapay piayumelg Joj 1843 19N
08°26 000 00°000°02 80°971'8. 0000664 00°006°64 sainjipuadx3y
08'26 000 00°000°0Z 80°9¥1'8. 0000664 00°006°64 000000 3deq
L7'a8 000 000 £2'0v6'01 00°008'21 000082k asuadx3 }sasalu| 000'S66
80°L0L 000 000 G'60T Ly 00'00L'9% 00°002'9% [edioulld-uswalley 198 000"} 66
¥0'86 000 00°000°0¢ 00°000°0¢ 00°00¥'02 00°00%'02 PESYISAQ BAREASILIWPY 000096
000°000 1daq
sainyipuadx3
8.°66 £r'es £Ves 02 66F'vS 00°006'95 0000695 sanuanay
8/°G6 EvEs Er'es 02'661'¥S 00°006°95 00°006'99 000000 3dag
000 EV'ES EVes EVES 000 000 SjusunsaAul uosaisiul 000'y99
69'G6 000 000 LLSPY'YS 00°006'95 00°006'95 anusAay Xel 000'¥0F
000°000 3deq
SaNUBASY
awdojanspay pleuMoIg - 167 pund
18bpng jo 19bpng jenuuy  1e6png jenuuy
% Jes A Jusun) [enmoy QLN AD [enidy a1d A9 [enioY 1A AD papuswy AD  [euiBuQ AD 1Z0Z/0E/9 0} 0Z0Z/L/L :AL1Y AD  L20ZI0E/9 O 0Z0e/ML {ALA AD
1€0¢/0€/9 O LZ0Z/LIY “QLD AD  LZ0Z/0€/9 O} L20Z/L/9 “OLN AD
wd 11:z1 Juauiyoled o Ay
L20e/\alL
01 :abed 12/0€/9 3A Aeuiwijaid

1H0d3Y JANLIANIdXI/ANNIATY



sjaBpng [eulBuQ g papuawiwy QLA Pue A10 'aLN pabelaay Buisn ,

9800} 81008 BE 494 ‘gouejeg pung Uy aBueys
000 ogE0l 61002 86484 090 fo'e Pun [BUAIBIA §UBIgI8A J0] 19R)I3 JaN
e e e e e et e e e e T T S T i e e e, e R
000 8890} 6L°00E 6E°294 000 000 BaNLRARY
000 92'a01 61°002 €29/ 000 000 000000 :daq
000 000 £e'ee £56°099 000 000 anusasy [e)ided painguuod 000'v29
000 98901 98'901 98°901 000 000 Sjusw)saAu| uosalsiul 000 99
000000 3deq
SaNUBASY
punJ [eUOWS|A S UIBIOA - LOb :pun4
196png Jo 196png |enuuy  196png [enuuy
% Jes A Juaung 1enioy L A9 [enjoy 1D AD BNy Q1A AD pepuswy AD  [euibuQ AD +20C/0E/9 1 0202/LIL 0LV AD  LZOZ/0Er9 04 0Z0Z/MIL ALA AD
1¢02/0/3 01 L20Z/Liy }LD AD  1Z202/0£/9 O) LZ0Z/L/9 :aLN AD
wd 1)z} Juswyaed Jo A1
L20c/LelL
L1 :abeq 12/0£/9 A Aeuiwaid

140d3Y JUNLIANIdXI/ANNIAIY



sjaBpng [euiBLIO 3 papuswwy QLA PUE QLD 'GLIN pebeseay Buisn ,

05°8€Z'G¢- G9'/88'CCl- 9F /¥8'SEL- :8oue|eg pund uf abueyn
06°¢6 06°8€2'G¢- 68 /88'CZl- 9% LyR'SEL- 00029'6FL-  00°0Z9'6FI- ANN4 ¥3M3S 10} a3 1N
8z'zol 182LLGE BE'VET LEL 1£'82Z'88) 00°0Z1'28L 00°0Z1'281 sainypuadx3
8¢°¢0l 182LLGE 8EVET'LE) 1£922'981 00021281 00°0ZL'281 000°000 :dag
0821 00°21e've 00/lg've 00°21e've 00°009°c} 00°009°€L uoieioaidaq 000°'896
00001 000 00'000'88 00°000°88 00°000'88 00°000'88 pesyisnQ aajelsIiuLIPpY 000°096
9z'1e 000 £9'6¢ €9'6E 00°000°GL 00°000°GL siopeiueJuIRA B Heday 000'0£6
65601 €026l 8¥'6.S G9'025°C 0000€'Z 00°00£'2 SN 000°026
98P 000 000 05'850°S 00°00%'01 00°00%°0L spuog %@ soueInsu| QO0'0L6
0,92 0562 88'G6 ¢5'e8e 00005 00°008 [EJuSy udojiun 000'6Le
2099 02'56L'9 0Z'€95°0L 02'£95°0} 0000091 0000091 "MBg [enjoe)UOD/|eunISS8jold 000°008
8Z'GEL 20'C¢ £1°96 062y 00°0Z¢ 00°02¢ alealpa 000'¢es
081yl vr'es ANA L0'veL 00008 00008 uojesuaduwio) sI8yIoM 000'0Z.
SrZLl L2016 L€'069'C G9'2G¥'0L 00'00£'6 00°00£'6 uoisuad 000814
9€'99 000 000 6L1EE 00008 00009 3|qnonpaq soueinsul L00'9LL
¥S9LL 96°CEL'L 66'9.5°¢ 19°/88°CL 00'00€"2 00'00€"2 80UBINSU| 8)1T/|BYdSOH 000912
90°¢el Z6'9¢t1 Ze oLy 89'Y8'} 00°00F'L 00°00%°1 funoag |eog 000°GLL
£8'6EL V692 92'808'9 1629208 000002 000002 awi] [In4 - lloiked 000204
0007000 3deQ
sainypuadx3
89'6¢1L LEVES £5°OVETl G082 00°00G'2¢ 00°005'2¢€ sanuaAsy
89°6¢1 LEVES £59KEY1 G8'08€'CS 00005'2€ 00°005'LE 000000 Adsg
89°6¢ LE'vES LEVES LEVES 00°008°} 00'008'L SJUBLSSAU| U0 JSausIul 000199
A 000 Zezie'el ySope'LS 00°002'SE 00°004'5E SaolMag JameS 000929
000000 3dag
sanuanay
ANNd YIM3IS - 065 :pung
1ebpng jo 1obpng |enuuy  18Bpng [enuuy
o, Jea A Jusung [endy alN AD lenjoy alo AD lenoy QLA AD papuswy AD jeulblio AD 1202/0E/3 01 0202/1/L “OLY AD  LZ0Z/0E/9 O} 0Z02/L/L “QLA AD
LZ0ZI0EI9 01 1Z0Z/LIY \ALD AD 1Z0Z/0S/3 01 LZ0Z/1/9 ‘AL AD
wd 1:z) Juswyored jo Ao
LeozieiL
Z) =bed LZ/0€/9 JA Aeujwiaid

140d3Y FANLIANIAXIANNIATY



sjabpng [eulBuQ 3 pspuswwy (LA pue a1 ‘LW pabeiany Buisn ,

S08 LZ0EZ'66 8e'068'eeL- 21'266'ze" 000v6'e0E  00'GER'6LE Jo8jj3 18N [BloL puele)
5968y FrAYL N 00'szy'sy ‘8ouejeg pund ui ebuey?)
LIVEL GUBEY 17849 00°527'Sir 00'605'2e" 00'008'z¢- AONMd H31VM 1041093 18N
5181 Se'BEY 17869} L9'¥6E2EE 00°006'9.1 00°005'64L sainypuadxs
5181 G6EY 12'869'L 19v6z'zee 00005941 00'006'9.} 000°000 3deq
000 000 000 00'9EV'Z 000 000 SIOl0BAUODJUIEN B Jleday 000'0E6
BLby 0L'b42 16'269 0F'E8G'E 00°000°2 000008 s8N 000026
a0'0 00¢ 000 00’0 000058 00'005°8 spuog g 8dueinsy) 000016
000 000 LA ¥RYEZ a0 J00 suchediunuiuiod 000058
000 000 000 00°000'} 000 000 sang 5 sdiysisquisiy 000 0€8
000 0562 18'G6 81'€8e 000 Q00 |eiuay Wiojlun ob0GLe
LLBLL S0°6EL bl29 EL2ED'LAE 00'000'09 00000084 ‘ARG {ErIOBLOD BUISsBI0ld 000 10
00'0 000 060 LEEEE L 0e6 0aq agyddng sauBUejUE F JEdaY 000'9LL
000 0g'0 GoG : ago 600 ) Bledipayy 0b0EEL
000 680 i) 60 aa'o ueiEeURdWEs SamaN 0002,
0oo 00’0 g0zee b 6o'g 0Ga uaisted pofaks
60°G pa'o : EEhLA' a6 60°6 BigIaNpad aoueinaY Lpa'9LL
060 09°0 €908y iy 8o gaLBiney BryBIAsaN 000'G)4
a0°0 00e BepLd L3R i Kitineag |eloog DOO'GLL
00’0 boe WiEeL a0 ik BUIL iInd = fisAly 000702
000'000 Adacy
seunipusdry
LTEBL lhye 00'5¢ Le'Bo'0LE 00'BabyE  60'000'pEL zanueAny
pra4ih 000 00'¢ 19'698'9/2 00000t 00°000'F¥ L 000°000 3dag
000 000 00's¢ §¢'09 000 000 seljjeusd Jamag g JSleM 000°€99
000 000 000 00'1€8C 000 000 $]88sY paxid Jo 8|S 000°GH9
9¢'06} 000 000 9E'8.6'€42 00°000'v¥} 00°000't¥L Sjuelg) 8lelS 000°0FS
000°000 1daQ
senuansy
ONNd H3LVM - 16G pund
196png jo Jebpng [enuuy  }9Bpng fenuuy
9% JEQA JuBLND [enoy a1 AD [enoy Lo A9 [enoy QLA AD papuawy AD [eulbuo AD 1202/0€/9 01 0¢0¢/L/L ALY AD  LZ0Z/0€/9 O3 0Z0Z/LIL ‘LA AD
1202/0£/9 O LZ0Z/ Ly -a1D AD  L20Z/0€/9 O LZ0&/L/9 ‘AL AD
wd |z} Wswyaled jo A1
LeoeelL
£l :abed 1Z/0€/9 FA Aeulwald

140d3d JHNLANIXI/ANNIAIY



Nancy Stoddard

From: Ashiey Mulder <bugosh@live.com>
Sent: Thursday, July 29, 2021 910 AM
To: mianager@parchmentorg

Subject: Twisters Cars and Cones Show
Attachments: ais_leg micepub?_150372_7.pdf

Hello! My name is Ashley Mulder amd | am the Store Manager at Twisters. We are currently organizing a Cars

and Cones Show for August 21st, 2821 and are reguesting use of the lot next to us on the corner of Riverview
and Park Dr to host the event. We intend on using the lot for participants to park their unique cars on and to

set up a Bounce House and Face Paiistimg area for the kids, which will be toward the back of the lot.

We are planning an all-inclusive evemt so people can come show off Classic Cars and Super Cars, Sports Cars
and Unique Cars! We have a team meady to make: trophies for different rankings and we are going to be
handing out gifts for all of the participamis as wel! as ice cream!

We also have set up a band, Crazy Sane, to come play 70s and 80s Rock cover songs, and a DJ for when the
band is not playing, to also play fanwifiy-zppropriate music. We'll be able to set them up in front of Twisters and
won't need the lot for them.

We're also going through the steps of trying to get a 24 hour liquor license for the event. | am getting in
contact with the Veteran's Miemoriail to collab with them on needing a non profit and have printed out all the
forms and guidelines we would need tw fioflow in order to potentially get the license and attached a LARA file
stating what the requirements would be to get one.

If | need to submit anything further, siease feel free to reach out to me at 269 779 8236



Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs
MICHIGAN LIGUOR CONTROL COMMISSION (MLCC)
525 W. Allegan, P.O. Box 30005, Lansing, MI 48909

RETAIL LIQUOR LICENSES

This Fact Sheet briefly descrihes refail liquar licenses, which are available from the Michigan Liquor Control
Commission, including the applicable licensing fee. Additional information is available which more thoroughly
describes the requirements for each type of license and outlines the steps in obtaining a particular retail liquor
license. License fees are due: tefore the license can be issued. Licenses must be renewed each year before
May 1.

The licenses are divided into an-premise and off-premise licenses. The on-premise licenses sell and serve
alcoholic beverages for consuamption on licensad premises. The off-premise licenses sell alcoholic beverages for
consumption off the licensed pramises. The general public sometimes calls the off-premise licenses package
liquor dealers.

On-Premise Retail Licenses

These licenses are for the types of business (such as restaurants, hotels, bars, or clubs) where alcoholic
beverages are served on the pramises. With the exception of private clubs, the number of licenses that can be
issued is governed by a specifiic quota based on the population of each lacal unit of government. On-premise
licensees will also frequently inild an SDM license (see description of off-premise ficenses) to sell beer and wine

for consumption off the premises.

License Authorized to &gl Description License Fee*
Class C Beer, wine, and figqumar ¢ Consumption on the $600/year plus
licensed premises $350/year for each
e Subject to quota additional bar*
Club Beer, wine, and figuiar e Consumption on the $300/year plus
licensed premises $1 for each member
¢ Can only sell to bonz over 150. *
fide club members Mammurr! fee i;
» Not subject to quota $750 not including
Sunday Sales fee.
Hotel Beer, wine, and! liguuar »  For consumption on the licensed  $600/year plus
premise and in $3 for each bedroom
the rooms of bona fide guests over 20* plus $350
»  Subject to gquota for each additional
bar
A Hotel Beer and wine » For consumption on the licensed  $250/year plus
premises and in $1 for each bedroom
the rooms of bona fide guests over 20 - not to
»  Subject to quota exceed $500
Tavern Beer and wine +  For consumption on the licensed  $250/year

premises
Subject to quota

» Ifthe Commission grasis a Sunday Sales Permit, an additional Sunday Sales fee of 15% of the

regular license fee is charged.



On-Premise Resort Licenses

Resort licenses can be issued for Class C, B-Hotel, A-Hotel, and Tavern classifications. Resort licenses are
available only after all the licenses allowed under the quota are issued and if the business to be licensed will
directly benefit tourism or visitors.

Applicants must meet qualifications for resorts and qualifications for the specific type of license classifications

being requested.

License

Transferable On-
Premise Resorts for
Class C, B-Hotel, A-
Hotel, & Tavern

Authorized to Sell

Same type of alcoholic
beverage as the regular
license; i.e. Class C
and B-Hotel Resorts
can sell beer, wine, and
liquor and A-Hotel and
Tavern Resorts can sell
beer and wine

Description

550 licenses were authorized
under the initial legislation.
These licenses may transfer
ownership and location with
Commission approval.

License Fee

Same as for the
regular license of
the same type

Non-Transferable
On-Premise Resorts
for Class C, B-Hotel,
A-Hotel, & Tavern

Same type of alcoholic
beverage as the regular
license; i.e. Class C
and B-Hotel Resorts
can sell beer, wine, and
liquor and A-Hotel and
Tavern Resorts can sell
beer and wine

5 licenses may be issued per
year. These licenses may
transfer ownership with
Commission approval but not
location. The license must be
returned to Commission if

business stops operations.
The business must be in

excess of $75,000
investment in the real estate,
building, leasehold
improvements, fixtures, and
inventory.

Same as for
regular license of
the same type

Economic
Development
Resorts for Class C,
B-Hotel, A-Hotel, &
Tavern

Same type of alcoholic
beverages as the
regular license; i.e.
Class C and B-Hotel
Million Dollar Resorts
can sell beer, wine, and
liquor and A-Hotel and
Tavern Million Dollar
Resorts can sell beer
and wine

15 licenses may be issued
per year. These licenses
may transfer ownership with
Commission approval but not
location. The license must be
returned to Commission if
business stops operations.
The business must be in
excess of $1,500,000
investment in the real estate,
building, leasehold
improvements, fixtures, and
inventory.

Additional requirements for all types of on-premise resort licenses include:

e The business must provide full-course meals.

Same as for
regular license of
the same type

e The business must have dining facilities and seat not less than 100 persons, for licenses to be
issued under MCL 436.1531(3). However, in counties having a population of less than 50,000, the

business must seat not less than 50 persons.

e The establishment must offer at least one of the following:

1. Some type of public recreational or entertainment activity on the premises or in close proximity.

2, Sleeping facilities, meeting or conference rooms, or convention facilities.

The majority of the gross income of the business must be from something other than the sale of alcoholic

beverages (sale of food, greens fees, room rental, etc.)



Off-Premise Retail Licenses

These licenses are for the types of business (such as party stores, grocery stores, convenience stores, and drug
stores) where alcoholic beverages are soid for consumption elsewhere. Frequently an off-premise retail liquor
licensee will hold both an SDD (also commonly referred to as a package liquor dealer) and an SDM license.

License Authorized to Seil Drescription License Fee*
SDD Liguor (spirits only) « Consumption off the $150/year plus $3 for
Specially licensed premises each $1,000 of liquor
Designated » Subject to quota purchased from MLCC in
Distributors MOTE: Applicants must excess of $25,000*

rmesat definition of

established merchant and

ba able to show source and
avaitability of funds to make
inifial purchase of $5,000 in
liguor inventory divided
arnong at least 50 brands.

SDM Beer and wine « Consumption off the $100/vear
Specially licensed premises

Designated = Nok subject to quota

Merchant

Off-Premise Resort SDD License

This is a special category of SDD licers2, wihich may be issued when the qucta is full in a governmental unit
with a population under 50,000. Rescrt SIMD ficenses can be issued statewide to promote economic
development and to stimulate the resca amd dourist industry.

The number of applicants for SDD Resuart lioanses far exceeds the number, which the Commission can grant.
Unsuccessful applicants may request that the Commission keep the application active for the next year's
issuance, e

License Authorized to Seil Description License Fee*

SDD Resort Liquor (spirits only} Up to 15 licenses may be 3150 per year plus
issued per year; may transfer $3 for each $1,000 of
ownership but not focation; liguor purchased from the
business must be designed to Commission in excess of
attract and service tourists $25,000*

and visitors to the resort area

¢ Ifthe Commission has granted & Sumday Sales Permii, an additionzal Sunday Sales fee of 15% of the
regular license fee is chargedt

MLCC Pub 2
Rev 5/15



Special (24-Hour) On-Premise License

This license allows nom-profit, religious, fraternal, civic, or patriotic organizations to obtain a one-day license to
sell alcoholic beverages to the pulslic far on-premise consumption. The license has these specific requirements:

License Authorized to Seff
Special Beer, wine, and liguor
24-Hour
License

Description

Good for only 24 hours,
Profits from sale of alcoholic
beverages must go to
organization and not to any

individual. The chief local law

enforcement officer in the
governmental unit must
approve the request where
the event is to be held. No
more than 12 licenses are
issued to individual
organizations (including
auxiliaries) each calendar
year. Proof of non-profit
status must be provided with
the application unless the
applicant is a national
organization or has obtained
previous special licenses.

License Fee

$50 for organizations in
existence for less than 1
year; $25 for organizations
in existence for one year
or more. Additional
Sunday Sales fees are
$7.50 for the $50 license
and $3.75 for the $25
license, only if Spirits are

sold. Municipalities must
pay $50.00 and if

alcoholic beverages will
be served prior to noon on
Sundays, an additional
$160.00 is required.



SIXTH AMENDMENT TO THE URBAN COOPERATION ACT AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING PUBLIC
MEDIA NETWORK TO AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF GALESBURG TO BECOME A MEMBER OF
PUBLIC MEDIA NETWORK

WHEREAS, the City of Kalamazoo, the Charter Township of Kalamazoo, the Charter Township of
Oshtemo, the Charter Township of Comstock, and the City of Parchment (hereinafter the “Member
Public Agencies”) have previously entered into an Urban Cooperation Act Agreement to establish Public
Media Network to administer cable television public access and other community media services, and

WHEREAS, the City of Galesburg has requested to join Public Media Network and to become a
Member Public Agency as described in the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement, and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Public Media Network has recommended to the Member
Public Agencies that the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement be amended to authorize the City of
Galesburg to become a Member Public Agency, and

WHEREAS, the Member Public Agencies have determined that it would be in the public interest
of their respective communities and would advance the efforts of Public Media Network in providing
public access and other community media services if the City of Galesburg joined Public Media Network,
and

WHEREAS, the City of Portage was previously a Member Public Agency but it has withdrawn as a
party to the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement and the Member Public Agencies wish to document this
withdrawal and the fact that the City of Portage is no longer a Member Public Agency;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED between the Member Public Agencies that the Agreement shall
be amended as follows:

1. Section 1 of the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement is hereby amended to delete the City of
Portage as a Member Public Agency and to add the City of Galesburg as a Member Public
Agency, and Section 1 shall read in its entirety as follows:

1. Membership. The following public agencies shall become members and parties to this
Urban Cooperation Act Agreement:
A. City of Kalamazoo
Charter Township of Kalamazoo
Charter Township of Oshtemo
City of Parchment
Charter Township of Comstock
City of Galesburg

mmonw

2. All other sections of the Urban Cooperation Act Agreement, as amended by the First,
Second, Third, Fourth, and Fifth Amendments which are not amended by this Sixth
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect.

37853303.2/109386.00001



MEMORANDUM

To: Mayor Britigan, Vice-Mayor Jordan, and Commissioners
From: Nancy R Stoddard, City Manager

Date: July 27, 2021

Re: USDA Requirements for Grant — State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO)

Michael Schwartz, from Prein & Newhof, stated that it is required to perform a SHPO (State Historic
Preservation Office) review of the project area on the USDA project.

In an email from USDA last week from Andy at USDA he stated: “National office training yesterday
confirmed that the Rural Utilities Service in Washington DC has rescinded our “No Historic Properties
Affected list” which allowed us to consider pipeline replacement projects as categorical exclusions with
no documentation. What this means going forward, is that every project will at least need a SHPO
review. For pipeline replacement projects, it could be a simple as only a SHPO letter with tribal
consultation”

The project proposed was previously a “categorical excluded” project; however, we need to now
perform a SHPO that was not in our original scope.
Below is what is required for this work:

OBJECTIVES
The goals and objectives for the services offered in this proposal include:

¢ Determine the presence or absence of sensitive documented archaeological
and/or historic resources.

# To help determine the risk of impacting any sensitive cultural resources and
provide recommendations for minimizing this risk.

# Provide information necessary for P&N and other project stakeholders to
consult according to regulations as applicable.

¢ Collaborate with P&N to prepare the application for Section 106 consultation for
submittal to the Michigan State Historic Preservation Office (MSHPQ)

The cost for this work is as follows:

Cultural Resource Desktop Review $2,000

Travel — if MSHPO returns to policy of in-person research $660

Schedule to complete is 4 to 6 weeks. We need to complete this to submit the USDA application.

FYI - Like all other engineering expenses, this is reimbursable at loan closing.

Motion to approve the cost of $2,660 for SHPO review of the project area.



CITY OF PARCHMENT
KALAMAZOO COUNTY, MICHIGAN

ORDINANCE
AN ORDINANCE TO REGULATE MOBILE FOOD TRUCKS AND
VENDORS WITHIN THE CITY OF PARCHMENT; TO REPEAL ALL
OTHER ORDINANCES OR PARTS THEREIN INCONSISTENT OR
CONTRARY TO THIS ORDINANCE; AND TO PROVIDE FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE FOR THIS ORDINANCE.

THE CITY OF PARCHMENT ORDAINS:
ARTICLE I

Chapter 18, Sections 18-76 through 18-80, are hereby reserved.

ARTICLE II

Chapter 18, Sections 18-81 through 18-90, are hereby added and shall now
read:

Sec. 18-81. Short Title.

This Article may be referred to as the "City of Parchment Mobile Food Vehicle
Ordinance."

Sec. 18-82. Definitions.
As used in this Article, the following terms shall have the meanings indicated:

Mobile Food Vehicle shall mean a motorized vehicle which, upon issuance of a
license by the City Clerk and conformance with the regulations established by this
Article, may temporarily park upon a public street and engage in the service, sale or
distribution of ready-to-eat food for individual portion service to the general public
directly from the vehicle.

Mobile Food Vehicle Vendor shall mean the registered owner of a mobile food
vehicle or the owner's agent or employee; and referred to in this Article as "vendor."



Sec. 18-83. Scope.

The provisions of this Article apply to mobile food vehicles engaged in the
business of cooking, preparing and distributing food or beverage with or without charge
upon or in public and private restricted spaces. This Article does not apply to vehicles
which dispense food and that move from place-to-place and are stationary in the same
location for no more than 15 minutes at a time, such as ice cream trucks or food
vending pushcarts and stands located on sidewalks.

Sec. 18.84. License Required.

A. It shall be unlawful for any person, including any religious, charitable or
non-profit organization, to operate within the City a mobile food vehicle without
having obtained from the City Clerk a license for that purpose.

B. A person desiring to operate a mobile food vehicle shall make written application
for such license to the City Clerk. The application for a license shall be on forms
provided by the City Clerk and shall include the following:

1. Name, signature, phone number, e-mail contact and business address of
the applicant.

2. A description of the preparation methods and food product offered for
sale, including the intended menu.

3. Information on the mobile food vehicle, to include year, make and
model of the vehicle and dimensions, which shall not exceed 36 feet in
length or 9 feet in width.

4. Information setting forth the proposed hours of operation, area of
operations, plans for power access, water supply and wastewater
disposal.

5. Copies of all necessary licenses or permits issued by the Kalamazoo
County Health Department.

6. Insurance coverage:

a. Proof of a general comprehensive liability policy with limits of
no less than $2,000,000 combined single limit coverage issued
by an insurer licensed to do business in this state and which
names the City as an additional insured.



b. Proof of a public liability and property damage motor vehicle
policy with limits of no less than $1,000,000 issued by an
insurer licensed to do business in this state.

All vendors receiving a license under this Article shall pay the annual fee as set
from time-to-time by the City Commission. For 2021, it shall be $40.00.

The City Clerk shall issue no more than 15 active mobile food vehicle licenses for
any calendar year. Each mobile food vehicle license shall expire on December 31
of each year.

A license issued under this article shall not be transferable from person to
person.

A license is valid for one vehicle only and shall not be transferred between
vehicles.

In addition to the annual fee, the vendor shall pay a fee for special events, such
as the Kindleberger Festival of the Arts, and other special events as determined
by the City Commission, which fee shall be set for each special event by the City
Commission.

All vendors shall be subject to Fire Marshall inspection at any time. Fire Marshall
inspection and certification shall be a prerequisite for an annual license. A
certification tag/sticker shall be prominently displayed on the truck.

Sec. 18.85. Regulations.

A.

No operator of a mobile food vehicle shall park, stand or move a vehicle and
conduct business within areas of the City where the license holder has not been
authorized to operate. The City Commission shall, by Resolution, identify those
streets and public areas where parking by mobile food vehicles is permitted.

The customer service area for mobile food vehicles shall be on the side of the
truck that faces a curb, lawn or sidewalk when parked. No food service shall be
provided on the driving-lane side of the truck. No food shall be prepared, sold or
displayed outside of mobile food vehicles.

No mobile food vehicle vendor shall provide or allow any dining area within 10
feet of the mobile food vehicle, including, but not limited to, tables and chairs,
booths, stools, benches or stand-up counters.

Customers shall be provided with single-service articles, such as plastic utensils
and paper plates, and a waste container for their disposal. All mobile food



vehicle vendors shall offer @ waste container for public use which the vendor
shall empty at its own expense. All trash and garbage originating from the
operation of mabile food vehicles shall be collected and disposed of off-site by
operators eath day. Spills of food or food by-products shall be cleaned up, and
no dumping of gray water on the streets is allowed.

No mobile food vehicle shall make or cause to be made any unreasonable or
excessive noise. The operation of all mobile food vehicles shall meet the City
Noise Ordimance, including generators. No loud music, other high-decibel
sounds, horms or amplified announcements are allowed.

Signage is omly aflowed when placed on mobile food vehicles. No separate
free-standing, signs are permitted.

No flashing air blinking lights or strobe lights are allowed on mobile food vehicles
or related sigmage when the vehicle is parked and engaged in serving customers.
All exterior lightts with over 60 watts shall contain opague hood shields to direct
the illumiration downward.

Mobile food wehicles, when parked on public streets, shall be parked in
conformance with &l applicable parking restrictions and shall not hinder the
lawful parkimg ar operation of other vehicles.

A mobile food vehicle shall not be parked on the street overnight or left
unattended andl unsecured at any time food is in the vehicle. Any mobile food
vehicle fourd o be unattended shall be considered a public safety hazard and
may be ticketed and impounded.

A vendor shall mot operate a mobile food vehicle within 500 feet of any fair,
festival, spedial event or civic event that is licensed or sanctioned by the City
unless the vendior has obtained permission from the event sponsor.

The issuanoe of a mobile food vehicle license does nat grant or entitle the vendor
to the exclusive use of any service route or parking space to the license holder.

A vendor shall not operate on private property without first obtaining written
consent to operate from the affected private property owner. A private property
owner shalll nat permit parking by a mobile food vehicle until a special use permit
has been ohiained to allow for use.

No mobile food vehicie shall use external signage, bollards, seating or other
equipment not contained within the vehicle. When extended, awnings for mobile
food vehicles shall have a minimum clearance of seven feet between the ground
level and the lowest point of the awning or support structure.



Any power required for the mobile food vehicle located on a public way shall be
self-contained, and a mobile food vehicle shall not use utilities drawn from the
public right-of-way. Mobile food vehicles on private property may use electrical
power from the property being occupied or an adjacent property, but only when
the property owner provides written consent to do so. All power sources must
be self-contained. No power cable or equipment shall be extended at or across
any City street, alley or sidewalk.

Mobile food vehicles shall not be parked within 150 feet of an existing brick-and-
mortar restaurant during the hours when such restaurant is open to the public
for business.

Section 18.86. Food Truck and Food Trailer Operational Safety.

In order to protect the public health, safety and welfare and in addition to the

other requirements of this Ordinance, a food truck or food trailer operator of a food
truck or food trailer in use in the City shall adhere by to following operational safety
requirements:

A.

B.

The operator shall not leave cooking equipment unattended while it is still hot.

The operator shall only operate or permit the operation of cooking equipment
only when all windows, service hatches, and ventilation sources are fully opened
unless weather conditions require the retaining of interior heat.

The operator shall ensure that all gas supply piping valves and gas container
valves are fully closed when the equipment is not in use.

The operator shall ensure that all cooking equipment, including the cooking
ventilation system, is regularly cleaned and grease removed.

All mobile or temporary cooking operations shall be separated from other mobile
or temporary cooking operations by a clear space distance of 10 feet.

The address of the current operational location for all food trucks or food trailers
in use in the City shall be posted accessible to all employees.

Section 18.87. Fuel and Power Source Regulations Applicable to Food Trucks
and Trailers.

In addition to the other requirements of this Ordinance, a food truck or trailer

owner or operator of a food truck or trailer in use in the City of Parchment shall be



required to adhere to the following regulations regarding the cooking fuel and power

source(s):

A. Prior to commencing cooking, the operator shall verify that fuel tanks are filled to
the capacity needed for uninterrupted operation during normal operating hours.

B. Refueling shall only be permitted during non-operating hours.

G Any engine-driven source of power shall be separated from the public by
barriers, such as physical guards, fencing, or enclosures.

D. Any engine-driven source of power shall be turned off and completely shut down
prior to refueling from a portable container.

E. Prior to refueling from a portable container, the operator shall verify that
surfaces of engine-driven source of power are cool to the touch.

E. An operator shall ensure that all electrical appliances, fixtures, equipment, and
wiring comply with the NFPA 70®.

G. An operator shall ensure that exhaust from engine-driven sources of power

comply with the following:

1, The source of exhaust shall be located at least 10 feet in all directions
from openings and air intakes.

2 The source of exhaust shall be located at least 10 feet from every
means of egress.

3. The source of exhaust shall be directed away from all buildings.

4. The source of exhaust shall be directed away from all other cooking
vehicles and operations.

Section 18.88. Propane System Integrity.

In addition to the other requirements of this Ordinance, a food truck or trailer

owner or operator of a food truck or trailer in use in the City of Parchment which
utilizes propane for cooking fuel shall adhere to the following regulations regarding the
propane system integrity prior to placing such unit in use in the City:

A.

The operator shall ensure that the main shutoff valve on all gas containers is
readily accessible at all times.



The operator shall ensure that portable gas containers are in the upright position
and secured to prevent tipping over.

The operator shall perform feak testing on all new gas connections of the gas
system.

The operator shall perform Jeak testing on all gas connections affected by
replacement of an exchangeable container.

The operatar st ensure that where a gas detection system is installed, that it
has beeni tested iin actordance with the manufacturer’s instructions.

The operator shali document all leak testing and shall make documentation
available ffor reviewy by the authorized official.

The operator shall ensure that on gas system piping, a flexible connector is
installed befween the regulator outlet and the fixed piping system.

Section 18.89. Scolid Fuel Regulations for Food Trucks and Food Trailers.

In additior o the other requirements of this Ordinance, a food truck or trailer

owner or operator of & food truck or trailer in use in the City of Parchment which
utilizes solid fuel (woad, charcoal, or other fuel) for cooking shall adhere to the
following additional reguiiations prior to placing such unit in use in the City:

A.

B.

Such fuei shall nait lbe stored above any heat-producing appliance or vent.
Such fuei shill noit e stored closer than 3 feet to any cooking appliance.

Such fuel is not stred near any combustible flammabile liquids, ignition sources,
chemicals, and foud supplies and packaged goods.

Such fuel is not stmned in the path of the ash removal or near removed ashes.

Ash, cinders, and other fire debris shall be removed from the firebox at regular
intervals and at least once a day.

Removed ashes, dnders, and other removed fire debris must be placed in a
closed, metal container located at least 3 feet from any cooking appliance.

Section 18.90. Viclation and Penalty.

Any person, firm, association, partnership, corporation, or governmental entity

who violates any of the provisions of this Ordinance or fails to adhere to a site plan



approved hereunder; fails to obtain a permit, or fails to provide fire safety equipment or
inspections as required herein; fails to adhere to the parameters of a permit issued,
fails to remove a temporary structure or otherwise violates any provision of this
Ordinance shall be deemed to be responsible for a municipal civil infraction as defined
by Michigan Statute which shall be punishable by civil fine determined in accordance
with the following schedule:

Minimum Fine Maximum Fine
1st Offense within 3-year period* $150.00 $500.00
2nd Offense within 3-year period* $250.00 $500.00
3rd Offense within 3-year period* $325.00 $500.00
4th or More Offense within 3-year period* $500.00 $500.00

* Determined on the basis of the date of commission of the offense(s).

Additionally, the violator shall pay costs which may include all expenses, direct
and indirect, which the City of Parchment has incurred in connection with the municipal
civil infraction. In no case, however, shall costs of less than $10.00 nor more than
$500.00 be ordered. In addition, the City shall have the right to proceed in any court of
competent jurisdiction for the purpose of obtaining an injunction, restraining order, or
other appropriate remedy to compel compliance with this Ordinance. Each day that a
violation of this Ordinance exists shall constitute a separate violation of this Ordinance.

Once a license has been issued, it may be revoked, suspended or not renewed by the
City Clerk for failure to comply with the provisions of this Article and any rules or
regulations promulgated by the City.

ARTICLE III

All Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed and shall
be of no further force and effect.

ARTICLE IV

Any and all sections, terms, provisions and/or clauses herein shall be deemed
independent and severable. Should any court of competent jurisdiction hold any
section, term, provision or clause void and/or invalid, all remaining sections, terms,
provisions and/or clauses not held void and/or invalid shall continue in force and effect.

ARTICLE V

This Ordinance shall take force and effect 30 days after publication of a summary
hereof, after adoption by the City Commission.



CERTIFICATE

I, Shannon Stutz, City Clerk for the City of Parchment, do hereby certify that the
foregoing City of Parchment Ordinance Number was adopted by the City
Commission at a regular meeting held on , 2021, and that the
following is a record of the vote of the members of said City Commission on said
Ordinance:

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

Shannon Stutz
City Clerk



